
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

Ball Park Scoreboard 

FOR THE CITY OF STOCKTON, CALIFORNIA 

(PUR 19-025) 

 

ADDENDUM No. 1 QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 

 

DATE: 9/26/19 

 

To All Potential Bidders: 

 

A.  This Addendum shall be considered part of the proposal documents for the above-mentioned 
project as though it had been issued at the same time and shall be incorporated integrally therewith.  
Where provisions of the following supplementary data differ from those of the original bid 
documents, this Amendment shall govern and take precedence. PROPONENTS MUST SIGN THE 
ADDENDUM AND SUBMIT IT WITH THEIR PROPOSALS. 
 
B.  Proponents are hereby notified that they shall make any necessary adjustments in their 
estimates as a result of this Addendum.  It will be construed that each proponent’s proposal is 
submitted with full knowledge of all modifications and supplemental data specified herein. 

 

THE CITY’S RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS SUBMITTED ARE IN BLUE. 

 

1. In the bid documents, it is indicated on page 26 that a baseball scoring controller 
with cabling must be MLB/MiLB approved. Fair-Play has installed systems in 
multiple ballparks including the Cincinnati Reds, Los Angeles Dodgers, Biloxi 
Shuckers and Charlotte Knights home fields.  I contacted the MLB and they had 
no criteria that they could provide me.  What certification do you have if any that 
we can provide? 
 

Proof that the equipment and components are currently installed and meet requirements 
at an official MLB or MiLB facility or a letter from MLB or MiLB stating its acceptance of 
the proposed components will satisfy this requirement. 
 

2. My understanding during the job walk was that it was going to be the only time that 
we could view/survey the facility. It has been brought to my attention that the ball 
club is allowing access to other vendors/bidders to return and do further surveys. 
Is that the case?  

 
The only on-site examination of the scoreboard installation and support areas lead by the 

City, as part of this procurement process was held on September 12th, 2019 during the 

mandatory walk through for submitting a proposal for this project. 

3. Will the left field display need a retractable net?   
 
Please add the cost for retractable netting to the Add Alternate section of Exhibit A- 
Proposal Fee Document in your proposal response. 



 
4. Please provide structural drawings of the displays on the concourse. 

 
Drawings available are included in the first amendment to the RFP, online at the City’s 
Bid Flash site, labeled as Exhibits B1-3. 
 

5. Please indicate if there are equipment limitations for the concourse area.   
 

Scissor man-lift and/or small boom lift will work to reach both boards and will be 
acceptable for use in needed areas during installation.  
 

6. Did I understand correctly that a bid bond is not required and that 
performance/payment/maintenance bonds would be discussed with the finalist? 

 
Page 35 of the RFP document lists all bonds that will be required of the successful bidder 
prior to contract award.  Bonds are not required at the time of the proposal submittal but 
are a requirement and the responsibility of the selected proposer prior to contract award.   
 

7. The RFP includes a lot of control room equipment. Is it up to the winning vendor 
to determine the equipment, brands and quality used?  It is somewhat arbitrary as 
brands and features vary and could have an overall effect on pricing as it equates 
to the total number. 

 
Requirements for the equipment are included in Exhibit A.  These requirements are a 
minimum acceptable level and will be included in the required service 
agreement/warrantee.  
 

8. Please confirm that your intended budget is no more than 650k. 
 

Available funding for this project, in its entirety, may not exceed $650,000. 
 

9. As I was inspecting the frame on the main display, i overheard some discussion 
on the service to the main board. With the addition of catwalks, we assume that 
rear service is sufficient for access to service the display.  I did hear something 
about front service being required, which contradicts the need for the 
catwalk. Please clarify 

 
A catwalk as specified on pages 26-27 of the RFP document, is a requirement of this 
project.  A catwalk installed on either side of the main video board is acceptable, however, 
a catwalk installed on the backside, may not in any way exceed the property/fence line. 
 

10. As all of our subcontractors who will be performing the actual installation, electrical 
and structural modifications for the new units are licensed in the state of California 
for their particular disciplines, what do you require of us with regard to the licenses? 
I understand a City of Stockton license is required. do you require any other 
licenses from the standpoint of our factory providing this bid proposal? 



Section 1.33 of the RFP details the prevailing wage requirements and contractor and 
subcontractor registration requirements.  Please see the California Department of 
Industrial Relations for further information.  Website is listed on page 12 of the RFP 
document. 

11. What’s the timing on this project?  
 
Contract award is anticipated in Dec 2019. Project completion is desired by the end of 
February 2020, but not later than March 2020, prior to the start of the baseball season. 

12. Where is powerline to Auxiliary Board? 

See Exhibits C- 1-6. 

13. Is Contractor License required? 

Please see answer number 10, above. 

14. Will there be access from the dirt lot to replace the scoreboard?  

Yes, City will obtain approval of the current property owner for use during installation, 
only. 

15. What is “Showcontrol”? 

This is a general term for the software system controlling the Scoreboard and Auxiliary 
board’s screen outcome. It is not intended to be proprietary to anyone.  Acceptable 
software must allow for control of the screens and desired media as described in Exhibit 
A. 

16. When are all questions due? 

All the questions/queries shall be delivered/emailed to the City by September 19, 2019. 

17. When will answers to all the questions will be posted? 

City responses will be posted on the City’s website by September 26, 2019.   

18. When are Proposals due?  

Thursday, October 3, 2019 by 2:00 O’clock p.m. PST 

19. On page 2 of the RFP document, the proponent’s checklist includes a "Proponents 
Fee Schedule" be included and signed. In reviewing the table of contents, I did not 
see a actual schedule. Exhibit A appears to be this schedule however it is not 
called out as such.  Is this the fee schedule document you are referring to? 



 
Yes.  All proposals must include a signed copy of Exhibit A- Proposal Fee to be 
considered responsive and continue in the selection process. 
 

20. “Outdoor Video Display” : the specification calls out for 12-16mm with a resolution 
of 480x720.  16mm standard pixel would be a resolution of 544 x 688 (374,272 
total pixels).  12mm standard pixel would be a resolution of 720 x 912 (656,640 
total pixels).  15mm virtual pixel would be an actual pixel width and height of 240 
x 720 (172,800 total pixels).  15mm virtual pixel is also a proprietary pixel design 
that only one bidder can offer.  This creates an uneven playing field for 
bidders.  Which option does the city prefer that bidders submit? 

 
The City will accept equipment that meets or exceeds the pixel pitch and resolution 
ranges.  The ranges were included to allow some flexibility for manufacturers while still 
ensuring a minimum quality threshold acceptable to the City. 
  

21. Can you confirm that there should be no bonds included in this bid? 
 
Please see answer number 6, above. 
 

22. On page 16 of the RFP document it calls out for a Wireless Pitch Speed Radar 
Gun and Baseball Scoring Controller.  On pages 25-30 I do not see where either 
of those are listed in a section.  Can you please confirm which section you would 
like these items included in for pricing purposes? 

 
Please include the Wireless Pitch Speed Radar Gun and Baseball Scoring Controller in 
the Outdoor Auxiliary LED Video display section of Exhibit A, Proposal Fee document. 
 

23. It looks like the intercom system is designed to be added per camera user.  Ex: If 
you wanted four production team members you would need four of these 
systems.  Correct?    
 

That is correct. 
 

24. There are tax lines on pages 27 and 29.  Municipal projects are not normally taxed 
in project like this and any tax paperwork is usually done by the municipality.  Will 
that be done on this project as well?  If taxes are responsibility of the bidder, please 
respond with the tax rate that each bidder needs to include. 

 
Proposers should include all anticipated costs associated with the delivery of the 
Scoreboard Replacement Project as outlined in the RFP.  The City will not calculate any 
tax burden.   
 

25. Product coming in from China could have 20-30% Tariffs applied. Does this Tariff 
need to be included in the purchase price? 

 



Yes.  All costs associated with this project must be included in the proposal. 
 

26. For customer references, do the 5 references need to be in the state of California? 
Do they need to be operational for 5 years or longer? Do they need to be in 
environmental/desert conditions? 

 
Please see the specifications listed in section 3.0.4 for acceptable reference 
requirements. 
 

27. Should taxes be carried in proposers pricing? 
 
See answer number 24, above. 
 

28. On page 38, It lists the contractor to provide Bid Bond, Performance Bond, 
Payment Bond and Maintenance Bond. Since this is a public project, does each 
bidder need to include payment/performance bonds in their total price? 

 
All required bonds will be the responsibility of the selected proposer, prior to contract 
award. 
 

29. Should permits be carried in proposers pricing? 
 
All required permits will be the responsibility of the selected proposer following contract 
award.   
 

30. What is the staffing expectation for the five (5) event supports? 
 
The expectation is enough personnel to support operating the full system during the first 
5 events.  Specifically, if there are multiple locations where operator error is possible 
during an event, then coverage for each operational point will be required. 
  

31. Is protective netting required in front of either video display? If so, should this be 
permanent or retractable? 
 

Please see answer number 3, above. 
 

32. Please verify the height of the video display. Pg. 25 Exhibit A Required 
Components: lists the video display at 480 pixels tall (which is ~25' tall for 16mm.) 
Does the video display need to be 28' tall or 24' tall?       

 
28 feet tall. 
                                                                                                                 

33. Please verify the width of the aux display. Pg. 25 Exhibit A Required Components: 
Outdoor Auxiliary Video display calls for 69.6' wide, but pg. 15 under Scopes and 
Services calls for 59' wide. The 2 outer most columns (the length of "Play it Again 
Sports" and "Sutter Health") is 59'8". 



 
The approximate width of the Auxiliary board shall be 59.8 feet.        
 
                                           

34. Please verify the height of the new aux ribbon display. The drawings show the 
existing static ads "Play it Again Sports" and "Sutter Health" in orange. These are 
9.4' tall. Does the new LED aux display need to be 6'-8' tall or 9.4' tall? 

 
The range for height of the Auxiliary board is approximately 6-8 feet.  The 9’4” 
measurement reflected in Exhibit B-2 includes space currently open and unused under 
the signage to the top of the column. 
 

35. RFP states 90 days from project award to completion. Can you confirm award 
date? 
 

Please see answer number 11, above. 
 

36. The RFP indicated a bid bond is required; please confirm the percentage the bid 
bond should be made out for. 
 

Please see answer number 6, above. 

 

 
BIDDER MUST ACKNOWLEDGE THIS AMENDMENT BY SIGNING BELOW AND 
ATTACHING THE SIGNED AMENDMENT TO THE BID FORM: 
 
Company Name ______________________________________ 
 
Contact Person _______________________________________ 
 
Signature ____________________________________________ 
 
Date _________________________________________________ 
 

Responses Due – Promptly by 2:00 P.M., Thursday, October 3, City Clerk’s Office. 

 

 

----------------------------------City of Stockton Use Only below this line--------------------------------- 

Addendum acknowledged and signed?  _________ (Procurement Specialist’s initials) 

 


